

BEFORE THE BOARD OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA

BOARD MEETING

JUNE 26, 2026

TRANSCRIPT OF THE PROCEEDINGS - VIA ZOOM

June 26, 2026
9:05 a.m.

BEFORE CHAIR DAVID SIMPSON,
BOARD MEMBERS JULIA ALTEMUS, JENNIFER RANKOSKY,
ALLAN PAYNE, and JOSEPH SMITH

REPORTED BY: CHERYL ROMSA
CHERYL ROMSA COURT REPORTING
1 NORTH LAST CHANCE GULCH, SUITE 1
P. O. BOX 1278
HELENA, MONTANA 59624
(406) 449-6380

PERSONS PRESENT:

Board Attorney Present:

Dana Hupp, Board Counsel

DEQ Personnel Present:

Board Secretary: Sandy Moisey Scherer

Board Liaison: Deputy Director James Fehr

DEQ Legal: Catherine Armstrong, Kirsten Bowers,
Amanda Galvan, Sam King, Jeremiah Langston, Lee McKenna,
Kurt Moser, Isabelle Nebel, and Nick Whitaker

DEQ Air, Energy and Mining: Craig Henrikson,
Eric Merchant, Dan Walsh, and Bo Wilkins

DEQ Enforcement: Whitney Bausch and Shaina Brown

DEQ Water Quality: Rachel Clark, Tatiana Davila,
Lindsey Krywaruchka, and Andy Ulven

DEQ Communications: Mae Vader

Other Parties Present:

Angela Otero

Rick Tappan - Tappan Law Firm

Pamela Garman and Vicki Marquis - Crowley Fleck

Sarah Clerget, Andrea Grave, Matthew Dolphay,

Matt Salzman, and Samuel Yemington - Holland & Hart

David (Kim) Wilson - Morrison Sherwood Wilson & Deola

Persons Present (Continued):

Barbara Chillcott - Western Environmental Law Center

Todd Briggs - Westmoreland

Jason Mohr - Montana Legislative Services

Diane Conradi - Conradi Law Office

Joe Dauner - Calumet Specialty Products Partners, L.P.

Bruce Fleming - Montana Renewables

1 WHEREUPON, the proceedings were had as follows:

2 CHAIR SIMPSON: Welcome, everyone, to the
3 June 26th meeting of the Board of Environmental Review.

4 Sandy, would you please take the roll.

5 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Chair Simpson.

6 CHAIR SIMPSON: Here.

7 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Vice Chair Aguirre.

8 She indicated she will not be attending today.

9 Board Member Altemus.

10 BOARD MEMBER ALTEMUS: Present.

11 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Payne.

12 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: Here.

13 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Rankosky.

14 BOARD MEMBER RANKOSKY: Here.

15 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: And Board Member Smith.

16 BOARD MEMBER SMITH: Here.

17 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: We have a quorum, sir.

18 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you, Sandy.

19 As requested, once again, we have to take note that
20 the use of AI tools during virtual public meetings is not
21 allowed by board members or public participants pending
22 state adoption of formal policies that address the
23 concerns and issues surrounding these uses.

24 Beginning with administrative items, first is the
25 approval of minutes. Are there any comments or

1 corrections to the minutes of the May 1st, 2026 meeting?

2 (No response.)

3 CHAIR SIMPSON: Is there a motion?

4 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: I move to approve the
5 minutes.

6 BOARD MEMBER SMITH: Second.

7 CHAIR SIMPSON: It's been moved and seconded to
8 approve the minutes of the May 1, 2026 meeting. Further
9 discussion.

10 (No response.)

11 CHAIR SIMPSON: There is no further discussion.
12 All in favor say aye.

13 (Response.)

14 CHAIR SIMPSON: Opposed.

15 (No response.)

16 CHAIR SIMPSON: Motion carries unanimously.

17 Next we need to approve the minutes of the May 15,
18 2026 meeting. Any comments or corrections to the minutes?

19 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: Was this the meeting that
20 we, we did not have a quorum?

21 CHAIR SIMPSON: This was the makeup meeting for
22 the meeting we did not have a quorum. Yes. This would
23 have been the, would have been the April meeting.

24 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: Okay.

25 CHAIR SIMPSON: Is there a motion?

1 BOARD MEMBER SMITH: I'll motion to approve the
2 minutes for the May 15th, 2026 meeting.

3 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: I'll second.

4 CHAIR SIMPSON: A motion has been made and
5 seconded to approve the minutes for the May 15, 2026
6 meeting. Further discussion.

7 (No response.)

8 CHAIR SIMPSON: All in favor say aye.

9 (Response.)

10 CHAIR SIMPSON: Motion approved unanimously.

11 The next item under administrative is renewal of
12 Board Counsel Hupp's contract. If you'll recall, when we
13 initially entered a contract with, with Dana, it was to be
14 an interim, interim appointment pending what we expected
15 to be another option for representation of the Board by
16 in-house, state-employed counsel.

17 Several weeks ago, I had a meeting with, with
18 Deputy Director Fehr about administrative matters
19 involving the Board, and as of now we still do not have
20 another option for board counsel within the, the state
21 government. So, as you can see, the present contract
22 expires August 14th. Our next meeting is August 15th.
23 And so DEQ would like to begin the process of renewing the
24 contract. But as a formality, we need to -- the Board
25 needs to vote on renewing the contract. Any questions or

1 discussion?

2 (No response.)

3 CHAIR SIMPSON: I guess I would comment that, you
4 know, Dana's assistance to this Board has been extremely
5 helpful in helping us to organize our discussions and
6 outlining the legal issues that set up the sideboards for
7 our decision-making.

8 So any, any further discussion?

9 (No response.)

10 CHAIR SIMPSON: Is there a motion?

11 BOARD MEMBER RANKOSKY: I motion to renew
12 Dana Hupp's contract for attorney, counsel.

13 BOARD MEMBER ALTEMUS: And I'll second it, Chair.

14 CHAIR SIMPSON: It's been moved and seconded that
15 the Board renew our contract with, with Dana Hupp as
16 general counsel to the Board until August of 2027.
17 Further discussion.

18 (No response.)

19 CHAIR SIMPSON: All in favor say aye.

20 (Response.)

21 CHAIR SIMPSON: Opposed.

22 (No response.)

23 CHAIR SIMPSON: The motion carries unanimously.
24 Thank you very much.

25 Contested case briefings, I'm going to go through this

1 fairly quickly. These are, are active cases before us
2 right now. I just want to update the Board on what's been
3 going on since our last meeting.

4 With respect to the first item, this is the FOFCOL for
5 Rosebud Mine Area F. Board Counsel Hupp is working on the
6 FOFCOL and we're anticipating, right now, a special
7 meeting on October 2nd for board discussion and board
8 review of the FOFCOL. So that is in progress. Any
9 questions on that?

10 (No response.)

11 CHAIR SIMPSON: I'm just going to -- Okay. Next
12 item, appeal and request for hearing regarding Rosebud
13 Mine Area B Amendment 5, permit number -- A scheduling
14 conference was held, and the Chair has issued a scheduling
15 order. Right now, we're scheduling the evidentiary
16 hearing for October 20 -- October 16th, excuse me. There
17 has been a motion from MEIC, et al., to stay these
18 proceedings. That will be considered at our next meeting.
19 That motion, by the way, came in too late to make it on
20 the agenda.

21 The next item, this is the matter of appeal and
22 request for hearing by Westmoreland Mining, LLC,
23 Absaloka Mining, regarding Minor Revision 311 for Coal
24 Surface Mine Permit C1985005, BER 2025-04. In March, the
25 Board issued its final agency action and order granting

1 DEQ's motion to dismiss, and the Board has been notified
2 that Westmoreland appealed this decision to the district
3 court. Just wanted the Board to be aware of that.

4 The next item is the Stillwater Mining case. This is
5 in progress. The initial procedural order was -- has been
6 issued. On May 18th, 2026, DEQ filed a motion to dismiss
7 and brief in support to dismiss Stillwater Mining's Appeal
8 Issue "C." Stillwater Mining has filed its response, oral
9 argument requested, and DEQ has replied -- it says filed
10 its reply brief. So this has been fully briefed. It's
11 anticipated the hearing on the motion to dismiss will be
12 scheduled at the August board meeting.

13 Next is the notice of appeal and request for hearing
14 by Westmoreland Absaloka Mining, LLC, for Coal Surface
15 Mine Permit C1985005, Noncompliance No. CN2026001. On
16 February 29th, Westmoreland filed an appeal and request
17 for contested case relating to the January 8th notice of
18 noncompliance and order of abatement. DEQ filed a motion
19 to stay proceedings and brief in support. Westmoreland
20 filed a motion -- a response to the motion to stay. A
21 hearing on the motion to stay again will be scheduled at
22 the August board meeting.

23 Last item -- Are there any questions on any of those,
24 any questions or comments?

25 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: No.

1 CHAIR SIMPSON: Okay. Thank you.

2 The last item under briefing items is the appeal and
3 request for hearing by R & D Transit, LLC. This was filed
4 March 3rd. We had a brief status update at the last
5 meeting. We had planned another status update at this
6 meeting. Counsel for R & D has notified the Board Counsel
7 that they would not be able to -- or she would not be able
8 to attend this meeting. So at the same time, though, we
9 would ask DEQ if there has been -- what, if any, new
10 updates on this since our last meeting.

11 As of right now, there has not been any action by the
12 Board on this. We're really waiting for clarification as
13 to just what this case is all about. Anything from the
14 Department on this in the way of an update?

15 MR. WHITAKER: Good morning, Chair Simpson,
16 members of the Board. My name is Nick Whittaker. I'm
17 staff attorney for DEQ on this matter. Yeah, I think
18 Ms. Crow, counsel for R & D Transit, in her request to
19 move the status update to the next meeting, I think kind
20 of gave the Board the current status of this, which is
21 R & D Transit is working to secure a vendor to perform the
22 necessary cleanup.

23 I think from DEQ's perspective, once that occurs, once
24 they get the vendor in place, then we expect that likely
25 this appeal will just be dismissed and the cleanup will

1 occur. As of right now, the latest update from Ms. Crow
2 is the information DEQ has that they're working to secure
3 a vendor but they don't have one in place right now.

4 But again, given the moving -- given R & D moving
5 forward on the, the request and cleanup, we expect that
6 this appeal will likely go away by the next board meeting,
7 but we'll provide the Board with a status update to that
8 effect if and when it occurs.

9 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you very much,

10 Mr. Whitaker. It sounds like that's moving forward.

11 We have a new contested case -- well, before we move
12 on, any -- one more time, any questions on any of the
13 briefing items?

14 (No response.)

15 CHAIR SIMPSON: I think it's all pretty
16 straightforward.

17 A new contested case. This is another by Westmoreland
18 Absaloka. The notice of noncompliance that had been
19 appealed has been followed up by a notice of violation.
20 Again, DEQ has filed a motion to stay proceedings and
21 brief in support and Westmoreland has filed responses, and
22 we expect a hearing on this in -- at the August board
23 meeting. Okay. Any questions on that?

24 (No response.)

25 CHAIR SIMPSON: Just as a, as a matter of a quick

1 background on that, the basis of DEQ's motion to stay is
2 that the violation, the notice of noncompliance and the
3 violation notice both have to do with the bond calculation
4 that was the subject of the Minor Revision 311. And since
5 Westmoreland has appealed the Minor Revision 311 case to
6 district court, that is the basis for their motion to stay
7 until those proceedings have completed. So we'll be
8 considering that in August.

9 Moving on to the action items, we're going to turn
10 things around here just a little bit, the reason being
11 that Board Member Rankosky will need to depart the meeting
12 at 11:30, I believe, and I would like to get these two,
13 two cases that involve oral arguments completed while she
14 is, while she is present.

15 So we'll skip over A and B for now and move on to the
16 Alpine Pacific Utilities, item C. We'll come back and
17 revisit A and B. I think both of those should be fairly
18 brief.

19 (BER 2019-06 WQ transcript bound separately.)

20 (9:19 a.m. to 10:11 a.m.)

21 * * * *

22 CHAIR SIMPSON: It is 10:20. I believe we're
23 ready to reconvene.

24 Sandy, would you call the roll again, please.

25 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Yes, sir.

1 Chair Simpson.

2 CHAIR SIMPSON: Here.

3 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Altemus.

4 BOARD MEMBER ALTEMUS: Here.

5 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Payne.

6 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: Here.

7 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Rankosky.

8 BOARD MEMBER RANKOSKY: Here.

9 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Smith.

10 BOARD MEMBER SMITH: Here.

11 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: We have a quorum, sir.

12 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you, Sandy.

13 (BER 2026-01 AQ transcript bound separately.)

14 (10:21 a.m. to 11:25 a.m.)

15 * * * *

16 CHAIR SIMPSON: Okay. Let's the bring the
17 meeting back to order.

18 Sandy, would call the roll, please.

19 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Chair Simpson.

20 CHAIR SIMPSON: Here.

21 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Altemus.

22 BOARD MEMBER ALTEMUS: Here.

23 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Payne.

24 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: Here.

25 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Board Member Smith.

1 Board Member Smith.

2 BOARD MEMBER SMITH: Here.

3 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: We have a quorum, sir.

4 CHAIR SIMPSON: Okay. Thank you very much.

5 Let's back up to item A under action items. This is
6 the appeal and request for hearing by Westmoreland
7 Rosebud, LLC -- Rosebud Mining, LLC, regarding issuance of
8 MPDES Permit No. MT0032042. That's BER No. 2022-06 WQ.
9 This is the Rosebud Mine Area B Amendment 5.

10 DEQ filed a status report on April 3rd. And we are
11 requesting an update here on where this project stands,
12 that is the implementation of the settlement agreement.
13 And it says we'll discuss the status of this case and
14 consider what, if any, action is appropriate.

15 So I'd ask the parties to tell us where we are on
16 this. We'll start with DEQ.

17 MS. BOWERS: Chair Simpson, members of the Board,
18 can you hear me? This is Kirsten Bowers --

19 CHAIR SIMPSON: Yes. I can.

20 MS. BOWERS: -- at Montana DEQ. Thanks. Yeah,
21 I'm having some computer issues all of a sudden.

22 So this will just be a brief update. The parties
23 continue to consult and review the water quality data
24 pursuant to paragraph 21(g) of the stipulation. And the
25 parties plan to meet in late July to discuss next steps,

1 and we could update the Board at its next meeting in
2 August after that meeting.

3 CHAIR SIMPSON: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Bowers.
4 Westmoreland, do you have anything to add?

5 MR. DOLPHAY: No, Mr. Chairman. We do not. We
6 agree with that status report.

7 CHAIR SIMPSON: Okay. Well, thank you very much.
8 We'll revisit this in August.

9 MR. DOLPHAY: Thank you.

10 MS. BOWERS: Thank you.

11 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you.

12 Next item, item B under action items, Decker Coal
13 Company's request for a hearing regarding Permit C1987001C
14 for West Decker. This matter has been stayed until this
15 meeting to allow the parties to keep working on
16 settlement. And so I'm requesting that the parties update
17 the Board on where we are and what progress is being made.
18 Again, we'll go to DEQ first.

19 MR. KING: Good morning, Board Chair, board
20 members. Sam King for DEQ. I was able to connect with
21 Ms. Marquis. She sent over a proposed order for the
22 agency's consideration. DEQ is in agreement with the
23 edits to that proposed order. I believe there were some
24 minor modifications made to that proposed order than what
25 was submitted yesterday, and I'll let Ms. Marquis share

1 that with the Board here. But ultimately, DEQ and Decker
2 are in agreement that the case should be dismissed.

3 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you, Mr. King.

4 Ms. Marquis.

5 MS. MARQUIS: Thank you, Chairman Simpson,
6 members of the Board. Yes, I appreciate DEQ indulging in
7 some late-night or early-morning negotiations on language.
8 We did reach an agreement for the language of a proposed
9 board order dismissing this contested case. I can share
10 my screen right now if you'd like to see it. And I'll
11 also e-mail a copy to the Board Secretary and the
12 Board Counsel, Ms. Hupp, if you'd like.

13 So here is -- Can you see the, the proposed order on
14 the screen? This differs from -- we submitted one late
15 yesterday. It had -- But since then, we've added this
16 language here that I've highlighted, and then there was a
17 sentence right between here that was taken out
18 (indicating). It was stating that the, the order was
19 terminated, and we took that sentence out. But the, the
20 main point here is that Decker Coal and DEQ agree to this
21 language, and we agree that the contested case should be
22 dismissed.

23 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you, Ms. Marquis.

24 I guess I have a question for Board Counsel.

25 Board Counsel Hupp, is this something that we can act

1 on now or does this need to be, need to be noticed since
2 it did not appear in the packet?

3 MS. HUPP: Chairman Simpson, we did notice this
4 as a action item, and part of the action item indicated
5 whether or not this -- an analysis of whether this case
6 could be dismissed. So I think you could vote on it at
7 this meeting.

8 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you very much.
9 Is there a motion?

10 BOARD MEMBER SMITH: Yeah. I will motion to
11 grant the order to dismiss as proposed today by both
12 parties.

13 BOARD MEMBER ALTEMUS: I'll second.

14 CHAIR SIMPSON: It's been moved and seconded to
15 grant the motion to dismiss as proposed by the parties
16 today. Any discussion?

17 (No response.)

18 CHAIR SIMPSON: I guess I would, I would just
19 like to compliment the parties on working together to
20 bring this to settlement and putting us in a position to
21 dismiss this case. So thank you very much both to
22 Westmoreland and to the Department.

23 Once again, it's moved and seconded to grant the joint
24 motion to dismiss. All in favor say aye.

25 (Response.)

1 CHAIR SIMPSON: Opposed.

2 (No response.)

3 CHAIR SIMPSON: Motion carries unanimously.

4 Again, thank you very much.

5 The only item remaining is E, item E. This is the
6 matter of the appeal and request for hearing by
7 valley Garden Land & Cattle regarding issuance of Opencut
8 Mining Permit No. 674. Dana has prepared a proposed final
9 decision and order. And I gather -- I assume everyone has
10 had a chance to take a look at that and wanted to ask the
11 Board for any comments or corrections, questions,
12 et cetera.

13 (No response.)

14 CHAIR SIMPSON: Silence is deafening.

15 I think it's a good piece of work. I have no comments
16 on it at all.

17 Again, thank you very much, Dana. Do we need a vote
18 on this?

19 MS. HUPP: Yes, Chairman Simpson, I would prefer
20 that the Board go ahead and vote to adopt this draft
21 order. So yes, I would like to have a motion to approve
22 the draft order. And then at that point, assuming the
23 Board does approve it, then I will -- my process, just so
24 the Board knows, is I do one last proofread, double-check
25 the citations, and then Chairman Simpson would actually

1 sign the order.

2 CHAIR SIMPSON: Okay. well, thank you very much.
3 I had assumed that was the case, but I wanted to be sure
4 since, you know, we did, we did vote on this matter when
5 we heard the arguments -- or heard the oral arguments.

6 Is there a motion?

7 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: Chair, I would move to
8 approve the proposed order.

9 BOARD MEMBER SMITH: Second.

10 CHAIR SIMPSON: It's been moved and seconded to
11 approve the proposed order on the Valley Garden case.
12 Further discussion?

13 (No response.)

14 CHAIR SIMPSON: All in favor say aye.

15 (Response.)

16 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you very much.

17 That concludes our action items. The next item is
18 general public comment. Under this item, members of the
19 public may comment on any public matter within the
20 jurisdiction of the Board that is not otherwise on the
21 agenda for the meeting. Individual contested case
22 proceedings are not public matters on which the public may
23 comment.

24 Is there any public comment?

25 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: I'm not seeing any, sir.

1 CHAIR SIMPSON: Thank you very much.

2 The next item is the Board Chair update. The only
3 thing I wanted to bring up here is that I don't remember
4 the exact date, but the Board -- a month or so ago, the
5 Board had an executive session having to do with the
6 matter of legal strategy as it pertains to the district
7 court decision in the selenium rule case and whether the
8 Board would appeal that to the Supreme Court, Montana
9 Supreme Court.

10 The Board voted unanimously to proceed with an appeal
11 for a variety of reasons, and I just want to report to the
12 Board that notice of appeal has been filed by both BER and
13 Teck Coal or successor to Teck Coal, so that is in motion.

14 And that's really all I have. Any questions for me?
15 (No response.)

16 CHAIR SIMPSON: All right. Well, good meeting,
17 everyone. Thank you very much for your participation.

18 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: Chair Simpson, this is
19 Sandy.

20 CHAIR SIMPSON: Dana has her hand up.

21 MS. HUPP: Yes, sir.

22 CHAIR SIMPSON: Dana, please proceed. I'm sorry.

23 MS. HUPP: Chairman Simpson and board members, I
24 just wanted to clarify the record with respect to the
25 Board's discussion regarding Alpine Pacific Utilities.

1 When Board Member Payne and I were having a dialogue back
2 and forth, there was a pending motion, if I recall
3 correctly. And so I just wanted to -- just so we have the
4 record clear and so the parties know what to expect at the
5 August meeting, it was my intention to prepare a draft
6 motion to dismiss for the Board's review; that that draft
7 motion would be a part of the board packet.

8 And I just wanted to clarify with the Board if the
9 Board wants to take a formal action to postpone, then, its
10 decision on the motion that was pending at the time or
11 what further action do you want -- In other words, I just
12 want to get clarity for the record what action you want to
13 take at the August meeting.

14 CHAIR SIMPSON: With respect to Alpine?

15 MS. HUPP: Correct.

16 CHAIR SIMPSON: I don't remember a motion that we
17 didn't vote on. I'm not sure I understand what the
18 question is, Dana.

19 MS. HUPP: Do you recall -- and I'll ask the
20 question of the board members. Was there -- or maybe
21 Sandy can clarify this. Was there a formal vote taken on
22 the Alpine motion to dismiss?

23 There was. Okay.

24 MS. MOISEY SCHERER: There was. Yes.

25 MS. HUPP: Thank you. So then I will prepare a

1 draft order for the Board's review for the August meeting.

2 CHAIR SIMPSON: Right. Exactly.

3 MS. HUPP: Okay. Thank you. I just -- we took a
4 break and I wasn't clear what the record was on that, so I
5 wanted to get clarity on that before we closed for today.

6 CHAIR SIMPSON: Okay. well, thank you very much.

7 MS. HUPP: Thank you.

8 CHAIR SIMPSON: Anything further for the good of
9 the order?

10 (No response.)

11 CHAIR SIMPSON: Is there a motion to adjourn?

12 BOARD MEMBER PAYNE: I would move that we
13 adjourn.

14 BOARD MEMBER ALTEMUS: And I'll second.

15 CHAIR SIMPSON: It's been moved and seconded that
16 we adjourn this meeting. Once again, thank you very much,
17 everyone, for your participation and attention. I think
18 it's been a good meeting.

19 All in favor say aye.

20 (Response.)

21 CHAIR SIMPSON: Have a good weekend, everyone.

22 (The proceedings concluded at 11:40 a.m.)

23 * * * * *

24

25

1 COURT REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

2
3 STATE OF MONTANA)
4 COUNTY OF LEWIS AND CLARK) ss.
5
6

7 I, CHERYL A. ROMSA, Court Reporter, residing in
8 Helena, Montana, do hereby certify:
9

10 That the foregoing proceedings were reported by
11 me in shorthand and later transcribed into typewriting;
12 and that the foregoing transcript of the proceedings
13 consisting of -22- pages of typewritten material
14 constitute a full, true, and accurate transcript of my
15 stenotype notes of the proceedings had and taken in the
16 above-entitled matter at the time and place hereinbefore
17 mentioned to the best of my ability.
18

19 DATED this the 20th day of July, 2026.
20

21 /s/Cheryl A. Romsa
22 CHERYL A. ROMSA
23
24
25

1	A			
1 ^[1] - 5:8 10:11 ^[1] - 12:20 10:20 ^[1] - 12:22 10:21 ^[1] - 13:14 11:25 ^[1] - 13:14 11:30 ^[1] - 12:12 11:40 ^[1] - 22:22 14th ^[1] - 6:22 15 ^[2] - 5:17, 6:5 15th ^[2] - 6:2, 6:22 16th ^[1] - 8:16 18th ^[1] - 9:6 1st ^[1] - 5:1	a.m ^[5] - 12:20, 13:14, 22:22 abatement ^[1] - 9:18 able ^[3] - 10:7, 15:20 Absaloka ^[3] - 8:23, 9:14, 11:18 act ^[1] - 16:25 action ^[12] - 8:25, 10:11, 12:9, 14:5, 14:14, 15:12, 17:4, 19:17, 21:9, 21:11, 21:12 active ^[1] - 8:1 add ^[1] - 15:4 added ^[1] - 16:15 address ^[1] - 4:22 adjourn ^[3] - 22:11, 22:13, 22:16 administrative ^[3] - 4:24, 6:11, 6:18 adopt ^[1] - 18:20 adoption ^[1] - 4:22 agency ^[1] - 8:25 agency's ^[1] - 15:22 agenda ^[2] - 8:20, 19:21 ago ^[2] - 6:17, 20:4 agree ^[3] - 15:6, 16:20, 16:21 agreement ^[4] - 14:12, 15:22, 16:2, 16:8 Aguirre ^[1] - 4:7 ahead ^[1] - 18:20 AI ^[1] - 4:20 al ^[1] - 8:17 allow ^[1] - 15:15 allowed ^[1] - 4:21 Alpine ^[4] - 12:16, 20:25, 21:14, 21:22 Altemus ^[3] - 4:9, 13:3, 13:21 ALTEMUS ^[6] - 4:10, 7:13, 13:4, 13:22, 17:13, 22:14 Amendment ^[2] - 8:13, 14:9 analysis ^[1] - 17:5 anticipated ^[1] - 9:11 anticipating ^[1] - 8:6 Appeal ^[1] - 9:7 appeal ^[12] - 8:12, 8:21, 9:13, 9:16, 10:2, 10:25, 11:6, 14:6, 18:6, 20:8, 20:10, 20:12 appealed ^[3] - 9:2,	11:19, 12:5 appear ^[1] - 17:2 appointment ^[1] - 6:14 appreciate ^[1] - 16:6 appropriate ^[1] - 14:14 approval ^[1] - 4:25 approve ^[9] - 5:4, 5:8, 5:17, 6:1, 6:5, 18:21, 18:23, 19:8, 19:11 approved ^[1] - 6:10 April ^[2] - 5:23, 14:10 AQ ^[1] - 13:13 Area ^[3] - 8:5, 8:13, 14:9 argument ^[1] - 9:9 arguments ^[3] - 12:13, 19:5 assistance ^[1] - 7:4 assume ^[1] - 18:9 assumed ^[1] - 19:3 assuming ^[1] - 18:22 attend ^[1] - 10:8 attending ^[1] - 4:8 attention ^[1] - 22:17 attorney ^[2] - 7:12, 10:17 August ^[12] - 6:22, 7:16, 9:12, 9:22, 11:22, 12:8, 15:2, 15:8, 21:5, 21:13, 22:1 aware ^[1] - 9:3 aye ^[6] - 5:12, 6:8, 7:19, 17:24, 19:14, 22:19	14:1, 14:17, 15:1, 15:17, 15:19, 16:1, 16:6, 16:11, 16:12, 16:24, 18:11, 18:20, 18:23, 18:24, 19:20, 20:2, 20:4, 20:5, 20:8, 20:10, 20:12, 21:1, 21:8, 21:9 board ^[18] - 4:11, 4:13, 4:21, 6:20, 8:7, 9:12, 9:22, 11:6, 11:22, 13:3, 13:21, 15:19, 16:9, 16:25, 20:23, 21:7, 21:20 Board's ^[3] - 20:25, 21:6, 22:1 bond ^[1] - 12:3 bound ^[2] - 12:19, 13:13 BOWERS ^[3] - 14:17, 14:20, 15:10 Bowers ^[2] - 14:18, 15:3 break ^[1] - 22:4 brief ^[7] - 9:7, 9:10, 9:19, 10:4, 11:21, 12:18, 14:22 briefed ^[1] - 9:10 briefing ^[2] - 10:2, 11:13 briefings ^[1] - 7:25 bring ^[3] - 13:16, 17:20, 20:3	13:2, 13:12, 13:16, 13:20, 14:4, 14:19, 15:3, 15:7, 15:11, 16:3, 16:23, 17:8, 17:14, 17:18, 18:1, 18:3, 18:14, 19:2, 19:10, 19:14, 19:16, 20:1, 20:16, 20:20, 20:22, 21:14, 21:16, 22:2, 22:6, 22:8, 22:11, 22:15, 22:21 chance ^[1] - 18:10 check ^[1] - 18:24 citations ^[1] - 18:25 clarification ^[1] - 10:12 clarify ^[3] - 20:24, 21:8, 21:21 clarity ^[2] - 21:12, 22:5 cleanup ^[3] - 10:22, 10:25, 11:5 clear ^[2] - 21:4, 22:4 closed ^[1] - 22:5 CN2026001 ^[1] - 9:15 Coal ^[6] - 8:23, 9:14, 15:12, 16:20, 20:13 comment ^[5] - 7:3, 19:18, 19:19, 19:23, 19:24 comments ^[5] - 4:25, 5:18, 9:24, 18:11, 18:15 Company's ^[1] - 15:13 completed ^[2] - 12:7, 12:13 compliment ^[1] - 17:19 computer ^[1] - 14:21 concerns ^[1] - 4:23 concluded ^[1] - 22:22 concludes ^[1] - 19:17 conference ^[1] - 8:14 connect ^[1] - 15:20 consider ^[1] - 14:14 consideration ^[1] - 15:22 considered ^[1] - 8:18 considering ^[1] - 12:8 consult ^[1] - 14:23 contested ^[7] - 7:25, 9:17, 11:11, 11:17, 16:9, 16:21, 19:21 continue ^[1] - 14:23 contract ^[7] - 6:12, 6:13, 6:21, 6:24, 6:25,
2				
20 ^[1] - 8:16 2019-06 ^[1] - 12:19 2022-06 ^[1] - 14:8 2025-04 ^[1] - 8:24 2026 ^[6] - 5:1, 5:8, 5:18, 6:2, 6:5, 9:6 2026-01 ^[1] - 13:13 2027 ^[1] - 7:16 21(g) ^[1] - 14:24 26th ^[1] - 4:3 29th ^[1] - 9:16 2nd ^[1] - 8:7				
3				
311 ^[3] - 8:23, 12:4, 12:5 3rd ^[2] - 10:4, 14:10				
5				
5 ^[2] - 8:13, 14:9				
6				
674 ^[1] - 18:8				
8				
8th ^[1] - 9:17				
9				
9:19 ^[1] - 12:20				
		B	C	
		background ^[1] - 12:1 basis ^[2] - 12:1, 12:6 begin ^[1] - 6:23 beginning ^[1] - 4:24 BER ^[5] - 8:24, 12:19, 13:13, 14:8, 20:12 between ^[1] - 16:17 bit ^[1] - 12:10 Board ^[50] - 4:3, 4:9, 4:15, 6:12, 6:15, 6:19, 6:24, 7:4, 7:15, 7:16, 8:2, 8:5, 8:25, 9:1, 9:3, 10:6, 10:12, 10:16, 10:20, 11:7, 12:11, 13:5, 13:7, 13:9, 13:23, 13:25,	C1985005 ^[2] - 8:24, 9:15 C1987001C ^[1] - 15:13 calculation ^[1] - 12:3 carries ^[3] - 5:16, 7:23, 18:3 case ^[17] - 7:25, 9:4, 9:17, 10:13, 11:11, 11:17, 12:5, 14:13, 16:2, 16:9, 16:21, 17:5, 17:21, 19:3, 19:11, 19:21, 20:7 cases ^[2] - 8:1, 12:13 Cattle ^[1] - 18:7 cetera ^[1] - 18:12 CHAIR ^[58] - 4:2, 4:6, 4:18, 5:3, 5:7, 5:11, 5:14, 5:16, 5:21, 5:25, 6:4, 6:8, 6:10, 7:3, 7:10, 7:14, 7:19, 7:21, 7:23, 8:11, 10:1, 11:9, 11:15, 11:25, 12:22,	

7:12, 7:15 copy [1] - 16:11 correct [1] - 21:15 corrections [3] - 5:1, 5:18, 18:11 correctly [1] - 21:3 Counsel [6] - 6:12, 8:5, 10:6, 16:12, 16:24, 16:25 counsel [6] - 6:16, 6:20, 7:12, 7:16, 10:6, 10:18 Court [2] - 20:8, 20:9 court [3] - 9:3, 12:6, 20:7 Crow [2] - 10:18, 11:1 current [1] - 10:20	21:6, 21:22 dismissed [4] - 10:25, 16:2, 16:22, 17:6 dismissing [1] - 16:9 district [3] - 9:2, 12:6, 20:6 DOLPHAY [2] - 15:5, 15:9 double [1] - 18:24 double-check [1] - 18:24 draft [5] - 18:20, 18:22, 21:5, 21:6, 22:1 during [1] - 4:20	followed [1] - 11:19 follows [1] - 4:1 formal [3] - 4:22, 21:9, 21:21 formality [1] - 6:24 forth [1] - 21:2 forward [2] - 11:5, 11:10 fully [1] - 9:10	16:18 individual [1] - 19:21 indulging [1] - 16:6 information [1] - 11:2 initial [1] - 9:5 intention [1] - 21:5 interim [2] - 6:14 involve [1] - 12:13 involving [1] - 6:19 issuance [2] - 14:7, 18:7 Issue [1] - 9:8 issued [3] - 8:14, 8:25, 9:6 issues [3] - 4:23, 7:6, 14:21 item [18] - 6:11, 8:4, 8:12, 8:21, 9:4, 9:23, 10:2, 12:16, 14:5, 15:12, 17:4, 18:5, 19:17, 19:18, 20:2 items [7] - 4:24, 10:2, 11:13, 12:9, 14:5, 15:12, 19:17	likely [2] - 10:24, 11:6 LLC [5] - 8:22, 9:14, 10:3, 14:7 look [1] - 18:10
D	E	G		M
Dana [8] - 6:13, 7:12, 7:15, 18:8, 18:17, 20:20, 20:22, 21:18 Dana's [1] - 7:4 data [1] - 14:23 date [1] - 20:4 deafening [1] - 18:14 decision [5] - 7:7, 9:2, 18:9, 20:7, 21:10 decision-making [1] - 7:7 Decker [4] - 15:12, 15:14, 16:1, 16:20 depart [1] - 12:11 Department [2] - 10:14, 17:22 Deputy [1] - 6:18 DEQ [17] - 6:23, 9:6, 9:9, 9:18, 10:9, 10:17, 11:2, 11:20, 14:10, 14:16, 14:20, 15:18, 15:20, 15:22, 16:1, 16:6, 16:20 DEQ's [3] - 9:1, 10:23, 12:1 dialogue [1] - 21:1 differs [1] - 16:14 Director [1] - 6:18 discuss [2] - 14:13, 14:25 discussion [10] - 5:9, 5:11, 6:6, 7:1, 7:8, 7:17, 8:7, 17:16, 19:12, 20:25 discussions [1] - 7:5 dismiss [10] - 9:1, 9:6, 9:7, 9:11, 17:11, 17:15, 17:21, 17:24,	e-mail [1] - 16:11 early [1] - 16:7 early-morning [1] - 16:7 edits [1] - 15:23 effect [1] - 11:8 employed [1] - 6:16 entered [1] - 6:13 Environmental [1] - 4:3 et [2] - 8:17, 18:12 evidentiary [1] - 8:15 exact [1] - 20:4 exactly [1] - 22:2 excuse [1] - 8:16 executive [1] - 20:5 expect [4] - 10:24, 11:5, 11:22, 21:4 expected [1] - 6:14 expires [1] - 6:22 extremely [1] - 7:4	Garden [2] - 18:7, 19:11 gather [1] - 18:9 general [2] - 7:16, 19:18 given [2] - 11:4 government [1] - 6:21 grant [3] - 17:11, 17:15, 17:23 granting [1] - 8:25 guess [3] - 7:3, 16:24, 17:18		mail [1] - 16:11 main [1] - 16:20 makeup [1] - 5:21 March [2] - 8:24, 10:4 MARQUIS [1] - 16:5 Marquis [4] - 15:21, 15:25, 16:4, 16:23 matter [8] - 8:21, 10:17, 11:25, 15:14, 18:6, 19:4, 19:19, 20:6 matters [2] - 6:18, 19:22 meet [1] - 14:25 meeting [37] - 4:3, 5:1, 5:8, 5:18, 5:19, 5:21, 5:22, 5:23, 6:2, 6:6, 6:17, 6:22, 8:3, 8:7, 8:18, 9:12, 9:22, 10:5, 10:6, 10:8, 10:10, 10:19, 11:6, 11:23, 12:11, 13:17, 15:1, 15:2, 15:15, 17:7, 19:21, 20:16, 21:5, 21:13, 22:1, 22:16, 22:18 meetings [1] - 4:20 MEIC [1] - 8:17 Member [14] - 4:9, 4:11, 4:13, 4:15, 12:11, 13:3, 13:5, 13:7, 13:9, 13:21, 13:23, 13:25, 14:1, 21:1 members [8] - 4:21, 10:16, 14:17, 15:20, 16:6, 19:18, 20:23, 21:20 Mine [5] - 8:5, 8:13, 8:24, 9:15, 14:9 Mining [7] - 8:22, 8:23, 9:4, 9:8, 9:14, 14:7, 18:8 Mining's [1] - 9:7 minor [1] - 15:24 Minor [3] - 8:23, 12:4, 12:5 minutes [8] - 4:25, 5:1, 5:5, 5:8, 5:17, 5:18, 6:2, 6:5
	F	H	J	
	fairly [2] - 8:1, 12:17 favor [6] - 5:12, 6:8, 7:19, 17:24, 19:14, 22:19 February [1] - 9:16 Fehr [1] - 6:18 filed [11] - 9:6, 9:8, 9:9, 9:16, 9:18, 9:20, 10:3, 11:20, 11:21, 14:10, 20:12 final [2] - 8:25, 18:8 first [3] - 4:24, 8:4, 15:18 FOFCOL [3] - 8:4, 8:6, 8:8	hand [1] - 20:20 hear [1] - 14:18 heard [2] - 19:5 hearing [11] - 8:12, 8:16, 8:22, 9:11, 9:13, 9:21, 10:3, 11:22, 14:6, 15:13, 18:6 held [1] - 8:14 helpful [1] - 7:5 helping [1] - 7:5 highlighted [1] - 16:16 house [1] - 6:16 Hupp [4] - 7:15, 8:5, 16:12, 16:25 HUPP [9] - 17:3, 18:19, 20:21, 20:23, 21:15, 21:19, 21:25, 22:3, 22:7 Hupp's [2] - 6:12, 7:12	January [1] - 9:17 joint [1] - 17:23 July [1] - 14:25 June [1] - 4:3 jurisdiction [1] - 19:20	
		I	K	
		implementation [1] - 14:12 in-house [1] - 6:16 indicated [2] - 4:8, 17:4 indicating [1] -	keep [1] - 15:15 kind [1] - 10:19 king [1] - 16:3 KING [1] - 15:19 King [1] - 15:20 Kirsten [1] - 14:18 knows [1] - 18:24	
			L	
			Land [1] - 18:7 language [4] - 16:7, 16:8, 16:16, 16:21 last [6] - 8:3, 9:23, 10:2, 10:4, 10:10, 18:24 late [4] - 8:19, 14:25, 16:7, 16:14 late-night [1] - 16:7 latest [1] - 11:1 legal [2] - 7:6, 20:6	

modifications ^[1] - 15:24 MOISEY ^[20] - 4:5, 4:7, 4:11, 4:13, 4:15, 4:17, 12:25, 13:3, 13:5, 13:7, 13:9, 13:11, 13:19, 13:21, 13:23, 13:25, 14:3, 19:25, 20:18, 21:24 Montana ^[2] - 14:20, 20:8 month ^[1] - 20:4 morning ^[3] - 10:15, 15:19, 16:7 motion ^[36] - 5:3, 5:16, 5:25, 6:1, 6:4, 6:10, 7:10, 7:11, 7:23, 8:17, 8:19, 9:1, 9:6, 9:11, 9:18, 9:20, 9:21, 11:20, 12:1, 12:6, 17:9, 17:10, 17:15, 17:24, 18:3, 18:21, 19:6, 20:13, 21:2, 21:6, 21:7, 21:10, 21:16, 21:22, 22:11 move ^[6] - 5:4, 10:19, 11:11, 12:15, 19:7, 22:12 moved ^[6] - 5:7, 7:14, 17:14, 17:23, 19:10, 22:15 moving ^[4] - 11:4, 11:10, 12:9 MPDES ^[1] - 14:8 MT0032042 ^[1] - 14:8	9:18, 11:18, 12:2 note ^[1] - 4:19 notice ^[8] - 9:13, 9:17, 11:18, 11:19, 12:2, 12:3, 17:3, 20:12 noticed ^[1] - 17:1 notified ^[2] - 9:1, 10:6 number ^[1] - 8:13	PAYNE ^[10] - 4:12, 5:4, 5:19, 5:24, 6:3, 9:25, 13:6, 13:24, 19:7, 22:12 pending ^[4] - 4:21, 6:14, 21:2, 21:10 perform ^[1] - 10:21 Permit ^[5] - 8:24, 9:15, 14:8, 15:13, 18:8 permit ^[1] - 8:13 perspective ^[1] - 10:23 pertains ^[1] - 20:6 piece ^[1] - 18:15 place ^[2] - 10:24, 11:3 plan ^[1] - 14:25 planned ^[1] - 10:5 point ^[2] - 16:20, 18:22 policies ^[1] - 4:22 position ^[1] - 17:20 postpone ^[1] - 21:9 prefer ^[1] - 18:19 prepare ^[2] - 21:5, 21:25 prepared ^[1] - 18:8 present ^[3] - 4:10, 6:21, 12:14 pretty ^[1] - 11:15 procedural ^[1] - 9:5 proceed ^[2] - 20:10, 20:22 proceedings ^[7] - 4:1, 8:18, 9:19, 11:20, 12:7, 19:22, 22:2 process ^[2] - 6:23, 18:23 progress ^[3] - 8:8, 9:5, 15:17 project ^[1] - 14:11 proofread ^[1] - 18:24 proposed ^[10] - 15:21, 15:23, 15:24, 16:8, 16:13, 17:11, 17:15, 18:8, 19:8, 19:11 provide ^[1] - 11:7 public ^[8] - 4:20, 4:21, 19:18, 19:19, 19:22, 19:24 pursuant ^[1] - 14:24 putting ^[1] - 17:20	8:9, 9:23, 9:24, 11:12, 11:23, 18:11, 20:14 quick ^[1] - 11:25 quickly ^[1] - 8:1 quorum ^[5] - 4:17, 5:20, 5:22, 13:11, 14:3	Response ^[6] - 5:13, 6:9, 7:20, 17:25, 19:15, 22:20 responses ^[1] - 11:21 Review ^[1] - 4:3 review ^[4] - 8:8, 14:23, 21:6, 22:1 Revision ^[3] - 8:23, 12:4, 12:5 revisit ^[2] - 12:17, 15:8 roll ^[3] - 4:4, 12:24, 13:18 Rosebud ^[5] - 8:5, 8:12, 14:7, 14:9 rule ^[1] - 20:7
N	O	P	R	S
name ^[1] - 10:16 necessary ^[1] - 10:22 need ^[6] - 5:17, 6:24, 12:11, 17:1, 18:17 needs ^[1] - 6:25 negotiations ^[1] - 16:7 new ^[3] - 10:9, 11:11, 11:17 next ^[14] - 5:17, 6:11, 6:22, 8:11, 8:18, 8:21, 9:4, 10:19, 11:6, 14:25, 15:1, 15:12, 19:17, 20:2 Next ^[1] - 9:13 Nick ^[1] - 10:16 night ^[1] - 16:7 Noncompliance ^[1] - 9:15 noncompliance ^[3] -	occur ^[1] - 11:1 occurs ^[2] - 10:23, 11:8 October ^[3] - 8:7, 8:16 once ^[4] - 4:19, 10:23, 17:23 Once ^[1] - 22:16 Opencut ^[1] - 18:7 Opposed ^[2] - 5:14, 7:21 opposed ^[1] - 18:1 option ^[2] - 6:15, 6:20 oral ^[3] - 9:8, 12:13, 19:5 order ^[20] - 8:15, 8:25, 9:5, 9:18, 13:17, 15:21, 15:23, 15:24, 16:9, 16:13, 16:18, 17:11, 18:9, 18:21, 18:22, 19:1, 19:8, 19:11, 22:1, 22:9 organize ^[1] - 7:5 otherwise ^[1] - 19:20 outlining ^[1] - 7:6	Pacific ^[2] - 12:16, 20:25 packet ^[2] - 17:2, 21:7 paragraph ^[1] - 14:24 part ^[2] - 17:4, 21:7 participants ^[1] - 4:21 participation ^[2] - 20:17, 22:17 parties ^[9] - 14:15, 14:22, 14:25, 15:15, 15:16, 17:12, 17:15, 17:19, 21:4 Payne ^[4] - 4:11, 13:5, 13:23, 21:1	Rankosky ^[3] - 4:13, 12:11, 13:7 RANKOSKY ^[3] - 4:14, 7:11, 13:8 reach ^[1] - 16:8 ready ^[1] - 12:23 really ^[2] - 10:12, 20:14 reason ^[1] - 12:10 reasons ^[1] - 20:11 reconvene ^[1] - 12:23 record ^[4] - 20:24, 21:4, 21:12, 22:4 regarding ^[6] - 8:12, 8:23, 14:7, 15:13, 18:7, 20:25 relating ^[1] - 9:17 remaining ^[1] - 18:5 remember ^[2] - 20:3, 21:16 renew ^[2] - 7:11, 7:15 renewal ^[1] - 6:11 renewing ^[2] - 6:23, 6:25 replied ^[1] - 9:9 reply ^[1] - 9:10 report ^[3] - 14:10, 15:6, 20:11 representation ^[1] - 6:15 request ^[10] - 8:12, 8:22, 9:13, 9:16, 10:3, 10:18, 11:5, 14:6, 15:13, 18:6 requested ^[2] - 4:19, 9:9 requesting ^[2] - 14:11, 15:16 respect ^[3] - 8:4, 20:24, 21:14 response ^[19] - 5:2, 5:10, 5:15, 6:7, 7:2, 7:9, 7:18, 7:22, 8:10, 9:8, 9:20, 11:14, 11:24, 17:17, 18:2, 18:13, 19:13, 20:15, 22:10	Sam ^[1] - 15:20 Sandy ^[7] - 4:4, 4:18, 12:24, 13:12, 13:18, 20:19, 21:21 scheduled ^[2] - 9:12, 9:21 scheduling ^[3] - 8:13, 8:14, 8:15 SCHERER ^[20] - 4:5, 4:7, 4:11, 4:13, 4:15, 4:17, 12:25, 13:3, 13:5, 13:7, 13:9, 13:11, 13:19, 13:21, 13:23, 13:25, 14:3, 19:25, 20:18, 21:24 screen ^[2] - 16:10, 16:14 second ^[6] - 5:6, 6:3, 7:13, 17:13, 19:9, 22:14 seconded ^[7] - 5:7, 6:5, 7:14, 17:14, 17:23, 19:10, 22:15 Secretary ^[1] - 16:11 secure ^[2] - 10:21, 11:2 see ^[3] - 6:21, 16:10, 16:13 seeing ^[1] - 19:25 selenium ^[1] - 20:7 sent ^[1] - 15:21 sentence ^[2] - 16:17, 16:19 separately ^[2] - 12:19, 13:13 session ^[1] - 20:5 set ^[1] - 7:6 settlement ^[3] - 14:12, 15:16, 17:20
		Q		
		quality ^[1] - 14:23 questions ^[8] - 6:25,		

several ^[1] - 6:17 share ^[2] - 15:25, 16:9 sideboards ^[1] - 7:6 sign ^[1] - 19:1 silence ^[1] - 18:14 SIMPSON ^[58] - 4:2, 4:6, 4:18, 5:3, 5:7, 5:11, 5:14, 5:16, 5:21, 5:25, 6:4, 6:8, 6:10, 7:3, 7:10, 7:14, 7:19, 7:21, 7:23, 8:11, 10:1, 11:9, 11:15, 11:25, 12:22, 13:2, 13:12, 13:16, 13:20, 14:4, 14:19, 15:3, 15:7, 15:11, 16:3, 16:23, 17:8, 17:14, 17:18, 18:1, 18:3, 18:14, 19:2, 19:10, 19:14, 19:16, 20:1, 20:16, 20:20, 20:22, 21:14, 21:16, 22:2, 22:6, 22:8, 22:11, 22:15, 22:21 Simpson ^[11] - 4:5, 10:15, 13:1, 13:19, 14:17, 16:5, 17:3, 18:19, 18:25, 20:18, 20:23 skip ^[1] - 12:15 Smith ^[4] - 4:15, 13:9, 13:25, 14:1 SMITH ^[7] - 4:16, 5:6, 6:1, 13:10, 14:2, 17:10, 19:9 sorry ^[1] - 20:22 sounds ^[1] - 11:10 special ^[1] - 8:6 staff ^[1] - 10:17 stands ^[1] - 14:11 start ^[1] - 14:16 state ^[3] - 4:22, 6:16, 6:20 state-employed ^[1] - 6:16 stating ^[1] - 16:18 status ^[8] - 10:4, 10:5, 10:19, 10:20, 11:7, 14:10, 14:13, 15:6 stay ^[7] - 8:17, 9:19, 9:20, 9:21, 11:20, 12:1, 12:6 stayed ^[1] - 15:14 steps ^[1] - 14:25 still ^[1] - 6:19 Stillwater ^[3] - 9:4, 9:7, 9:8 stipulation ^[1] -	14:24 straightforward ^[1] - 11:16 strategy ^[1] - 20:6 subject ^[1] - 12:4 submitted ^[2] - 15:25, 16:14 successor ^[1] - 20:13 sudden ^[1] - 14:21 support ^[3] - 9:7, 9:19, 11:21 Supreme ^[2] - 20:8, 20:9 Surface ^[2] - 8:24, 9:14 surrounding ^[1] - 4:23	V
	T	Valley ^[2] - 18:7, 19:11 variety ^[1] - 20:11 vendor ^[3] - 10:21, 10:24, 11:3 violation ^[3] - 11:19, 12:2, 12:3 virtual ^[1] - 4:20 vote ^[7] - 6:25, 17:6, 18:17, 18:20, 19:4, 21:17, 21:21 voted ^[1] - 20:10
		W
		waiting ^[1] - 10:12 wants ^[1] - 21:9 water ^[1] - 14:23 weekend ^[1] - 22:21 weeks ^[1] - 6:17 welcome ^[1] - 4:2 West ^[1] - 15:14 Westmoreland ^[11] - 8:22, 9:2, 9:14, 9:16, 9:19, 11:17, 11:21, 12:5, 14:6, 15:4, 17:22 WHEREUPON ^[1] - 4:1 WHITAKER ^[1] - 10:15 Whitaker ^[1] - 11:10 Whittaker ^[1] - 10:16 words ^[1] - 21:11 WQ ^[2] - 12:19, 14:8
ultimately ^[1] - 16:1 unanimously ^[5] - 5:16, 6:10, 7:23, 18:3, 20:10 under ^[5] - 6:11, 10:2, 14:5, 15:12, 19:18 up ^[5] - 7:6, 11:19, 14:5, 20:3, 20:20 update ^[12] - 8:2, 10:4, 10:5, 10:14, 10:19, 11:1, 11:7, 14:11, 14:22, 15:1, 15:16, 20:2 updates ^[1] - 10:10 uses ^[1] - 4:23 Utilities ^[2] - 12:16, 20:25	U	Y
		yesterday ^[2] - 15:25, 16:15